
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA

COMMISSION CHAMBER
October 21, 2014

1. 9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: October 7, 2014 Minutes and Summary Minutes
b. RE: Repair Request, JD #5
c. RE: Repair Request, JD #1
d. RE: Repair Request, CD #60
e. RE: Repair Request, CD #64
f. RE: Repair Request, CD #46
g. RE: Repair Request, CD #23
h. RE: Liquor Licenses
i.

2. 9:05 a.m. Claims (10 minutes)

3. 9:15 - Human Services - 1 hour

4. 10:15 am - Human Resources  (15 min.)

5. 10:30 AM Kathy Brockway (5 minutes)
a. Request for Action - 1 CUP application

6. 10:35 a.m. Jason Gibbs (10 minutes)
a. RE: County Road #104

7. 10:45 a.m. Cindy Shaughnessy (15 minutes)
a. RE: Ebola Update

8. 11:00 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator
a. RE:  Award Bid SAP 40-599-023 Tyrone Twp Bridge
b. RE: Tim Biehn Farm Lease Renewal
c. RE:  Waterville City Garage Lease Agreement
d. RE:  Waterville EDA Sublease Agreement

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 1 / 83



e. RE:  Engineering Service Agreement 367th Ave and 570th Ave
f. RE: MCIT Delegate and Alternate
g. RE:  Municipal Maintenance Agreements
h. RE:  Set Public Hearing for 2015-2019 CIO
i. RE:  Set Public Hearing for Proposed Fee Increases
j.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 2 / 83



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: October 7, 2014 Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: Repair Request, JD #5

RE: Repair Request, JD #1

RE: Repair Request, CD #60

RE: Repair Request, CD #64

RE: Repair Request, CD #46

RE: Repair Request, CD #23

RE: Liquor Licenses

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 3 / 83



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
October 7, 2014

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, October 7, 
2014 at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: 
Steve Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, John King and Joe Connolly. Also present were Darrell Pettis and 
Brent Christian.  Dave Gliszinski was excused.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the agenda for the business of the day.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
consent agenda.

 Approved the September 23, 2014 Minutes and Summary Minutes
 Approved a Repair Request for Le Sueur-Scott JD#1
 Approved a Repair Request for CD#58
 Approved the following Liquor Licenses:

Lakeside Supper Club – Liquor License
Next Chapter Winery - Liquor License, Strong Beer Only
Whiskey River Emporium – Liquor License
Hobber’s Hwy 99 Bar & Grill – Liquor License
Traxler’s Hunting Preserve Inc. - Liquor License
Le Sueur Country Club Inc. – Liquor License
Caribou Gun Club Inc. – Wine and Strong Beer License

Pam Simonette, Auditor - Treasurer appeared before the Board with Applications for Repurchase 
for three properties.  

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the Request to Repurchase from Douglas Van Houdt for the repurchase of 223 Green Street 
West, Waterville, Parcel I.D. 24.450.0520 in the amount of $20,823.40.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
Request to Repurchase from Cornerstone State Bank for Jake Seth for the repurchase of 329 
Fourth Street South. Le Sueur,  Parcel I.D. 21.690.0290 in the amount of $7,639.99 and for the 
repurchase of 711 Fourth St North. Le Sueur,  Parcel I.D. 21.580.0070 in the amount of 
$7,699.23.

Ann Traxler, Emergency Management presented to the Board the 2014 Le Sueur County 
Emergency Operations Plan.  

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Chair to sign the Le Sueur County Emergency Operations Plan, dated 
September 2014.

Darrell Pettis, Administrator appeared before the Board with three items for approval.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 4 / 83



On motion by Wetzel, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board authorized the 
Chair to sign the Contract between Le Sueur County and Dirt Merchant, Inc for the construction 
of the Lake Washington Outlet Structure in the amount of $116,316.00

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Chair to sign the Reimbursement Agreement between Le Sueur County and 
the Lake Washington Improvement Association for the reimbursement to the county of the 
construction costs of the Lake Washington Outlet Structure.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Chair, County Administrator and Sheriff to sign the 2014 State of Minnesota 
Federal Boating Safety Supplemental Equipment Grant Agreement.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the following cases and 
claims were approved:                                                                                                

Financial:  $   44,292.34 
Soc Serv:   $   54,967.31

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by King, and unanimously approved, the following claims were 
approved for payment:

Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

33248 Aufderhar Construction Inc $    2,387.17
33256 Bolton & Menk Inc $  67,490.95
33259 Christian, Keogh, Moran & King $    2,757.38
33261 Contech Engineered Solutions $    6,720.28
33264 Don Hanks Construction $  14,715.53
33266 Dwyer Plumbing & Heating $    7,628.00
33282 Information Systems Co $    3,114.00
33283 IT Savvy LLC $    4,232.00
33289 Lea/Richard C $    2,100.00
33291 Mariska Enterprises $    2,076.00
33296 MN Counties Computers Coop $  16,154.95
33299 MN Dept of Transportation $    2,196.81
33300 MN Safety Council $    4,703.20
33315 Regents of the University of Minnesota $  27,836.01
33320 Schwickert’s Tecta America LLC $    3,780.00
33321 SEH Inc $  24,760.40
33322 Selly Excavating Inc $  16,980.00
33324 Sibley County Treasurer $  11,516.91
33326 Southern MN Construction Co Inc $  69,714.45
33327 State of Minnesota $130,256.44
33332 Tac 10, Inc $  10,253.00
33338 Traffic Marketing Services Inc $175,400.43
33339 Traxler Construction $  14,434.65

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 5 / 83



84 Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  34,916.65
23 Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $621,208.56
107 Total all claims paid: $656,125.21

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned 
until Tuesday, October 21, 2014 at 9:00 am.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 6 / 83



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, October 7, 2014
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The 
complete minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le 
Center, MN and are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us. 
●The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, October 7, 
2014 at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: 
Steve Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, John King and Joe Connolly. Also present were Darrell Pettis and 
Brent Christian.  Dave Gliszinski was excused.
●The Board approved the agenda for the business of the day. (Connolly-Wetzel)
●The Board approved the consent agenda. (King-Wetzel)

 Approved the September 23, 2014 Minutes and Summary Minutes
 Approved a Repair Request for Le Sueur-Scott JD#1
 Approved a Repair Request for CD#58
 Approved the following Liquor Licenses:

Lakeside Supper Club – Liquor License
Next Chapter Winery - Liquor License, Strong Beer Only
Whiskey River Emporium – Liquor License
Hobber’s Hwy 99 Bar & Grill – Liquor License
Traxler’s Hunting Preserve Inc. - Liquor License
Le Sueur Country Club Inc. – Liquor License
Caribou Gun Club Inc. – Wine and Strong Beer License

●The Board approved the Request to Repurchase from Douglas Van Houdt for the repurchase of 
223 Green Street West, Waterville, Parcel I.D. 24.450.0520 in the amount of $20,823.40. 
(Wetzel-Connolly)
●The Board approved the Request to Repurchase from Cornerstone State Bank for Jake Seth for 
the repurchase of 329 Fourth Street South. Le Sueur, Parcel I.D. 21.690.0290 in the amount of 
$7,639.99 and for the repurchase of 711 Fourth St North. Le Sueur, Parcel I.D. 21.580.0070 in 
the amount of $7,699.23. (Connolly-King)
●The Board approved and authorized the Chair to sign the Le Sueur County Emergency 
Operations Plan, dated September 2014. (Wetzel-Connolly)
●The Board authorized the Chair to sign the Contract between Le Sueur County and Dirt 
Merchant, Inc for the construction of the Lake Washington Outlet Structure in the amount of 
$116,316.00 (Wetzel-King)
●The Board approved and authorized the Chair to sign the Reimbursement Agreement between 
Le Sueur County and the Lake Washington Improvement Association for the reimbursement to 
the county of the construction costs of the Lake Washington Outlet Structure. (Connolly-Wetzel)
●The Board approved and authorized the Chair, County Administrator and Sheriff to sign the 
2014 State of Minnesota Federal Boating Safety Supplemental Equipment Grant Agreement. 
(King-Wetzel)
●The following cases and claims were approved: Financial:  $44,292.34 and Soc Serv: 
$54,967.31 (King-Connolly)
●The following claims were approved for payment: (Wetzel-King)
Warrant # Vendor Name Amount
33248 Aufderhar Construction Inc $    2,387.17
33256 Bolton & Menk Inc $  67,490.95
33259 Christian, Keogh, Moran & King $    2,757.38
33261 Contech Engineered Solutions $    6,720.28

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 7 / 83

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


33264 Don Hanks Construction $  14,715.53
33266 Dwyer Plumbing & Heating $    7,628.00
33282 Information Systems Co $    3,114.00
33283 IT Savvy LLC $    4,232.00
33289 Lea/Richard C $    2,100.00
33291 Mariska Enterprises $    2,076.00
33296 MN Counties Computers Coop $  16,154.95
33299 MN Dept of Transportation $    2,196.81
33300 MN Safety Council $    4,703.20
33315 Regents of the University of Minnesota $  27,836.01
33320 Schwickert’s Tecta America LLC $    3,780.00
33321 SEH Inc $  24,760.40
33322 Selly Excavating Inc $  16,980.00
33324 Sibley County Treasurer $  11,516.91
33326 Southern MN Construction Co Inc $  69,714.45
33327 State of Minnesota $130,256.44
33332 Tac 10, Inc $  10,253.00
33338 Traffic Marketing Services Inc $175,400.43
33339 Traxler Construction $  14,434.65
84 Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  34,916.65
23 Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $621,208.56
107 Total all claims paid: $656,125.21
●The Board adjourned until Tuesday, October 21, 2014 at 9:00 am. (Connolly-King)
ATTEST: Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 8 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 9 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 10 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 11 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 12 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 13 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 14 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 15 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 16 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 17 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 18 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 19 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 20 / 83



Liquor License Applications

1. Westwood Marina
2. Woods Bar & Grill
3. Little Dandy
4. Lakefront Bar & Grill

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 21 / 83



Future Meetings 2014

October 21, 2014 Board Meeting, 9:00am

October 28, 2014 Board Meeting, 9:00am

November 4, 2014 Board Meeting, 9:00am

November 11, 2015 Offices closed for Veteran’s Day, No Board Meeting

November 13, 2014 P & Z Meeting at 7:00pm, Environmental Services Bldg.

November 18, 2014 Board Meeting, 9:00am

November 18, 2014 Le-Sueur-Waseca Community Health Board Meeting, 1:30pm – Waterville

November 20, 2014 Board of Adjustment Variance Meeting at 3:00pm, Environmental Services Bldg.

November 25, 2014 Board Meeting, 9:00am

November 27-28, 2014 Offices closed for Thanksgiving

December 2, 2014 Board Meeting, 9:00am

December 9, 2014 No Board Meeting

December 11, 2014 P & Z Meeting at 7:00pm, Environmental Services Bldg.

December 16, 2014 Board Meeting, 4:30pm

December 16, 2014 Budget Hearing, 6:00pm

December 18, 2014 Board of Adjustment Variance Meeting at 3:00pm, Environmental Services Bldg.

December 23, 2014 Board Meeting, 9am

December 24, 2014 Offices close at 12:00pm for Christmas Eve

December 25, 2014 Offices closed for Christmas Day

December 30, 2014 No Board Meeting

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 22 / 83



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 a.m. Claims (10 minutes)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 23 / 83



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:15 - Human Services - 1 hour

Staff Contact: Sue Rynda

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 24 / 83



Human Services Board Agenda
October 21, 2014 @ 9:05 a.m.

100- PRESENTATIONS/INFORMATION:
110:  Financial Worker and Case Aide Day – October 15th, 2014

200- PROGRAM GRAPHS & REPORTS:

210- Finance Graphs/Report;
220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                 
230- Family Services Graphs-

                    231- Social Services Team 
       232- Child Services Team
                   242.1- Out Of Home Placement Report
                   242.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report;
        233- Behavioral Health Team

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS:

310 - Aging Services for Communities – Transportation Services
320 – Brown County Evaluation Center – Detox Services
330 – Blue Earth County Psychiatric Services Contract
340 – Commissioner’s Warrants

               

Department of Human Services
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE          LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646

507-357-2251          FAX 507-357-6122

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 25 / 83



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Board Meeting

Item 4

10:15 am - Human Resources  (15 min.)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 26 / 83



Equal Opportunity Employer

HUMAN RESOURCES
AGENDA ITEMS

October 21, 2014

The Employee Recognition Committee and the Le Sueur County Commissioners wish to 
recognize the following employees celebrating their significant length of service anniversaries.

Kris Armendariz Human Services 20 yrs.
Elisa O’Malley Public Health 20 yrs.
Robin Allen Human Services 15 yrs.
Darrell Pettis County Administration/Highway 15 yrs.
Angie Pribyl County Recorder's Office 10 yrs.
Nancy Domonoske County Extension 10 yrs.
Arlene Lemmer Public Health 10 yrs.
Emily O’Brien Sheriff's Office 10 yrs.
Mary Lynn Schatz Public Health 10 yrs.
Brett Mason Sheriff's Office 10 yrs.

Recommendation to post and request the merit list for a full time Agency Social Worker, in 
Human Services, as a Grade 10, Step 1 at $21.13 per hour.  

Recommendation to post and advertise for a part time Drug Court Coordinator, in Court 
Administration, as a Grade 13 , Step 1 at $25.17  per hour. 

Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Administrative Assistant - Recording 
Clerk, in the County Administrator's Office, as a Grade 6, Step 1 at $16.74 per hour. 

Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Administrative Assistant III, in the 
Veteran's Services Office, as a Grade 5, Step 1 at $15.79 per hour.

Recommendation to end employment with employee 1841, effective October 7, 2014.

Human Resources 
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057

 Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607
Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 27 / 83



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Board Meeting

Item 5

10:30 AM Kathy Brockway (5 minutes)

Request for Action - 1 CUP application

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway - Environmental and P & Z Director

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 28 / 83



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
October 21, 2014

TO: LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

FROM: LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

SUBJECT: “REQUEST FOR ACTION”

The Planning Commission recommends your action on the following item:

ITEM #1: LE SUEUR COUNTY SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
(APPLICANT); CRAIG & COLLEEN HANSON, ST PETER, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County 
grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating and filling of approximately 359 cubic yards of material 
within the bluff for the construction of a ravine stabilization project in a Conservancy “C” District.  Property is located 
in Lots 28 & 46, Re-Plat Auditor’s Subdivision, Section 22, Kasota Township.  

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:  

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application as written.

ACTION: ITEM #1:___________________________

DATE:_______________________________________________

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S SIGNATURE:______________________________

1

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 29 / 83



FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS, LE SUEUR COUNTY SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, (APPLICANT); CRAIG 
& COLLEEN HANSON, ST PETER, MN (OWNER  has applied for a Conditional Use Permit  to allow grading, 
excavating and filling of approximately 359 cubic yards of material within the bluff for the construction of a ravine 
stabilization project in a Conservancy “C” District.  Property is located in Lots 28 & 46, Re-Plat Auditor’s Subdivision, 
Section 22, Kasota Township.  

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on  October 09, 2014,  in 
order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties pertaining to and as provided by the 
Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le Sueur 
County Board of Commissioners recommends approval of the application due to the following findings:

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values 
within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and 
vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights 
in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On October 21, 2014, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners 
apprioved the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by the LE SUEUR COUNTY SOIL & WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, CRAIG & COLLEEN HANSON. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the October 21, 
2014, Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of 
Le Sueur County.

1.  The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values 
within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and 
vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights 
in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the above Findings 
of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating and filling of approximately 359 cubic yards of material 
within the bluff for the construction of a ravine stabilization project in a Conservancy “C” District.  Property is located 
in Lots 28 & 46, Re-Plat Auditor’s Subdivision, Section 22, Kasota Township.  

ATTEST:

Steve Rohlfing, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis,  Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____________________________

2

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 30 / 83



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
October 09, 2014

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Reak, Jeanne Doheny, Don Rynda, Chuck Retka, Shirley 
Katzenmeyer, Doug Krenik, Al Gehrke, Pam Tietz

MEMBERS ABSENT: Betty Bruzek,  Steve Olson

OTHERS PRESENT: Kathy Brockway, Commissioner Connolly

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM  by Chairperson, Jeanne Doheny.

ITEM #1: LE SUEUR COUNTY SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
(APPLICANT); CRAIG & COLLEEN HANSON, ST PETER, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County 
grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating and filling of approximately 359 cubic yards of material 
within the bluff for the construction of a ravine stabilization project in a Conservancy “C” District.  Property is located 
in Lots 28 & 46, Re-Plat Auditor’s Subdivision, Section 22, Kasota Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation.  Ryan Jones, SWCD Engineer and MikeSchultz, 
SWCD Representative were present for application.  

TOWNSHIP:  Notified through the application process.    DNR: N/A      LETTERS:  N/A

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none

Discussion was held regarding:  construction of check dams, 8 check dams will be placed at various 
upstream locations within the channel, minimal tree removal,  maintenance, time frame for project 
completion, similar projects constructed in Le Sueur County, erosion control.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values 
within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and 
vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights 
in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

Motion was made by Chuck Retka to approve the application as written. Seconded by Don Reak.  Motion 
approved.  Motion carried.

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the minutes from the September 11, 2014 meeting by 
Seconded by Al Gehrke.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn meeting by Don Reak.  Seconded by Chuck Retka.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Meeting Adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,
Shirley Katzenmeyer
By Kathy Brockway

Tape of meeting is on file in the
Le Sueur County Environmental Services Office

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 31 / 83



STAFF REPORT
GENERAL INFORMATION

APPLICANT:  SOIL WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT (SWCD)  OWNER:  CRAIG & COLLEEN HANSON

911 ADDRESS: 33401 STATE HIGHWAY 99, ST. PETER MN 56082

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating and filling of 
approximately 359 cubic yards of material within the bluff for the construction of a ravine stabilization project. 

ZONING ORDINANCE SECTIONS:  Sections 7 & 18

GOALS AND POLICIES:
Goal 2:  Le Sueur County should adopt and enforce land use goals and policies that conserve and restore its 

natural resources, bring protections to the ecological systems of the natural environment, and prevent 
the premature development of natural resource areas.

Policy:   The County should continue its preservation of significant bluff areas and river valleys through its use of a 
Conservancy Zone.

SITE INFORMATION

LOCATION:  Property is located in Lots 28 & 46, Re-Plat Auditor’s Subdivision, Section 22, Kasota Township.  

ZONING:              Conservancy “C” District

GENERAL SITE
DESCRIPTION:  Bluff

ACCESS:             N/A

EXISTING LAND USE WITHIN ¼ MILE:
North: Wooded/Highway 99/Scattered Residential/Bluff South: Wooded/Bluff
East: Wooded/Bluff West: Wooded/Bluff

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

See narrative.

TOWNSHIP BOARD NOTIFICATION

Applicant contacted Daren Barfknecht of the Kasota Township Board on August 19, 2014.

NATURAL RESOURCES INFORMATION

SHORELAND:  The proposal is not located within the Shoreland District.
WETLANDS:    According to the National Wetlands Inventory,   No wetlands located in the quarter-quarter section where 

the project is proposed.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 32 / 83



SITE PLAN

AERIAL PHOTO

             

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 33 / 83



ATTACHMENTS

Narrative, Ravine Stabilization Plans, Aerial Photos

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION CONSIDERATIONS

       The Planning Commission and staff shall consider possible adverse effects of the proposed conditional use and what additional 
requirements may be necessary to reduce such adverse effects. Its judgment shall be based upon the following factors to include, 
but not limited to:

1. Relationship to County plans.
2. The geographical area involved.
3. Whether such use will negatively affect surrounding properties in the area in which it is proposed.
4. The character of the surrounding area.
5. The demonstrated need for such use.
6. Whether the proposed use would cause odors, dust, flies, vermin, smoke, gas, noise, or vibration or would impose hazards to life or 

property in the neighborhood.
7. Whether such use would inherently lead to or encourage disturbing influences in the neighborhood.
8. Whether stored equipment or materials would be screened and whether there would be continuous operation within the visible range of 

surrounding residences.
9. Abatement of Environmental Hazards as regulated in this Ordinance

10. Other factors impacting the public health, safety and welfare.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION FINDINGS
Based on the information submitted by the applicant, contained in this report, and as required by the Le Sueur 
County Zoning Ordinance, the following findings have been developed for this request:  
(Please circle one for each item:  Agree, Disagree, Not Applicable.)

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the 
purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity.   

       A    D    NA     

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.    A   D     NA     

3. The adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided.   A    D NA     

4. The adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the 
proposed use.  A D   NA     

5. The adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so 
that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance 
to neighboring properties will result.  A   D   NA     

Recommend  (circle one)  approval  /  denial  /  table /  of Conditional Use Permit.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 34 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 35 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 36 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 37 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 38 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 39 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 40 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 41 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 42 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 43 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 44 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 45 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 46 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 47 / 83



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Board Meeting

Item 6

10:35 a.m. Jason Gibbs (10 minutes)

RE: County Road #104

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 48 / 83



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Board Meeting

Item 7

10:45 a.m. Cindy Shaughnessy (15 minutes)

RE: Ebola Update

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 49 / 83



LE SUEUR COUNTY
PUBLIC HEALTH 

88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
Phone (507) 357-8246 

 Fax (507) 357-4223

Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
October 21, 2014

Public Health Update on Ebola

Agenda:

1) MDH Ebola Fact Sheet (handout)
2) MDH Ebola Outbreak: Frequently Asked Questions (handout)
3) The role of Local Public Health (LPH) in Isolation and Quarantine
4) MDH communication with partners
5) Issuing legal Quarantine orders
6) Enforcement of Quarantine orders

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 50 / 83



Ebola  
 
What is Ebola disease? 
Ebola disease is caused by the Ebola virus and is one of a 
number of hemorrhagic fever diseases. Ebola disease causes 
severe illness in which 50-90 percent of those infected die. 
Ebola disease was first discovered in 1976 in what is now the 
Democratic Republic of Congo near the Ebola River.  

What are the symptoms of Ebola disease? 
• Fever 
• Headache 
• Joint and muscle aches 
• Weakness 
• Diarrhea 
• Vomiting  
• Stomach pain 
• Lack of appetite 
• Abnormal bleeding 

Some patients have a rash, red eyes, hiccups, cough, sore 
throat, chest pain, difficulty breathing or swallowing, or 
bleeding inside and outside the body.  

Symptoms most commonly start 8-10 days after coming into 
contact with the Ebola virus but can occur as early as 2 days to 
up to 21 days after exposure. 

How is Ebola disease spread? 
Ebola is spread by direct contact with:  
• Blood or other body fluids (such as: vomit, diarrhea, 

urine, breast milk, sweat, semen) of an infected person 
who currently has symptoms of Ebola or who has recently 
died from Ebola. 

• Objects or surfaces contaminated by body fluids of a 
person infected with Ebola virus, for example clothing or 
bedding of an ill person.  

A person infected with the Ebola virus cannot pass it to others 
before any symptoms appear.  

Ebola virus is thought to be transmitted to people from wild 
animals and then spreads in humans from one person to 
another. The exact source of the virus in animals is unknown, 
but Ebola has been found in bats and primates. The virus is 
thought to be transmitted to humans through the infected 
animal’s body fluids, such as eating an infected animal. 

Who is at risk for Ebola disease? 
The risk of catching Ebola in the general public is extremely 
low. 

Health care providers or family members caring for Ebola 
patients are at highest risk because they may come into contact 
with blood or body fluids. 

How do you treat Ebola disease? 
• There is no medication that cures Ebola and no vaccine to 

prevent it.  
• Treatment for Ebola disease is supportive, meaning 

providing fluids, maintaining blood pressure, replacing 
lost blood.  

• Seeking health care as soon as symptoms appear increases 
the chances of surviving. It also prevents other people 
from getting infected because they will not come into 
contact with blood and body fluids of infected people. 

How do you prevent Ebola disease? 
• Avoid contact with blood and body fluids of those who 

are ill. 
• Wash your hands often. 
• Don’t handle items that have come in contact with an 

infected person’s blood or body fluids.  
• Use protective clothing such as gloves, masks, gowns 

when caring for sick persons. 
• Avoid contact with sick or dead wild animals. 
• Do not eat wild animals or bush meat. 
• Avoid areas with outbreaks. 

What about travel?  
Before you travel  
• Talk with your doctor or a travel medicine clinic if you 

are planning a trip to areas where outbreaks are occurring.  
• Check the CDC’s Travelers’ Health website for travel 

notices on specific diseases and countries, see 
http://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/notices. 

After you travel 
If anyone gets a fever, headache, joint and muscle aches 
within three weeks of returning from your trip. 
• Call your doctor or clinic right away. They will let you 

know if you need to come in for a visit.  
• Tell your doctor where you traveled, what activities you 

were involved in, and if you had contact with anyone who 
had Ebola. 

  

Ebola: Minnesota Department of Health Fact Sheet          10/2014 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 51 / 83

http://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/notices


Ebola – Page 2 

Resources 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
• Ebola, www.cdc.gov/vhf/ebola/ 
• Travelers’ Health, wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/    
• Telephone: 800-CDC-INFO (800-232-4636) 

 

 
World Health Organization 

• Ebola and international travel, 
www.who.int/csr/disease/ebola/en/ 
 
 
 

Minnesota Department of Heath 
Infectious Disease Epidemiology, Prevention and Control Division 
PO Box 64975, Saint Paul, MN 55164-0975 
651-201-5414 or 1-877-676-5414                
 www.health.state.mn.us 

Ebola: Minnesota Department of Health Fact Sheet          10/2014 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 52 / 83

http://www.cdc.gov/vhf/ebola/
http://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/
http://www.who.int/csr/disease/ebola/en/


Ebola Outbreak: Frequently Asked Questions 

Updated October 14, 2014 

Important things to know: 
• There is an Ebola outbreak occurring in West Africa.  
• No one has contracted Ebola disease in Minnesota.  
• Ebola is not spread through food, water, or the air. It is only spread through direct contact with blood or body fluid 

of a person with symptoms of Ebola or who has died from Ebola.  

What is Ebola? 
• Ebola is caused by the Ebola virus. It affects many of the body’s organ systems and often causes severe illness.   
• Symptoms of Ebola most commonly start 8-10 days after coming into contact with Ebola virus but can occur as 

early as 2 days to up to 21 days after exposure. Symptoms include: 
o Fever 
o Headache 
o Joint and muscle aches 
o Weakness 
o Diarrhea 
o Vomiting 
o Stomach pain 
o Lack of appetite 
o Abnormal bleeding 

• Ebola is a serious disease with a high fatality rate. Unfortunately, there are no available medications to cure 
Ebola, and there is no vaccine or medicine to prevent Ebola.  

Is Ebola a new virus? How much do we know about it? 
• Ebola is not a new virus.  
• Ebola has been well studied since it was discovered in 1976. We know a lot about the virus and how it is spread. 

How is Ebola spread? 
• Ebola is spread by direct contact with blood or other body fluids (such as: vomit, diarrhea, urine, breast milk, 

sweat, semen) of an infected person who has symptoms of Ebola or who has recently died from Ebola. 
• It can also be spread on objects or surfaces contaminated by body fluids of an infected person, for example 

clothing or bedding of an ill person that have not been cleaned.  
• Ebola can only be spread from one person to another when someone has symptoms. 
• Ebola is not spread through food, water, or the air.  
• Ebola is not spread through casual contact.  
• In some circumstances, Ebola may also be spread from sick or dead wild animals. It is not known for sure which 

wild animals carry Ebola, but it has been found in bats, monkeys, and apes. 
o In countries where Ebola is occurring, avoid contact with sick or dead wild animals. Do not eat wild 

animals or bush meat. 
o Currently, there are no reports of dogs or other pets becoming sick with Ebola or transmitting it to 

humans. 
o There is no evidence of mosquitoes or insects transmitting Ebola.   

 
Infectious Disease Epidemiology, Prevention and Control Division 
P.O. Box 64975 
St. Paul, MN 55164-0975 
651-201-5414 
www.health.state.mn.us                                                                 Oct. 14, 2014 | Page 1 of 4 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 53 / 83



Ebola Outbreak: Frequently Asked Questions 

 
Who can spread Ebola to others? 

• For a person to spread Ebola to others, they must have: 
1. Been in an area within the last 21 days where Ebola disease is occurring, AND 
2. Been in contact with the blood or body fluids (such as: vomit, diarrhea, urine, breast milk, sweat, semen) 

of a person with Ebola or who has died from Ebola, AND 
3. Developed Ebola symptoms. 

Who is at risk? 
• The risk of catching Ebola in the general public is extremely low.  
• Ebola is not spread by casual contact with someone who has traveled to countries in West Africa with Ebola 

outbreaks. 
• Health care providers or family members caring for a person with Ebola are at highest risk because they may 

come in contact with blood or body fluids.  

What has happened in West Africa? 
• This is not the first outbreak of Ebola, but the current outbreak in West Africa is the largest in history. 
• The outbreak has hit major cities with large populations in West Africa.  
• This region does not have all of the necessary resources or infrastructure to identify ill people, provide treatment, 

and prevent the spread of disease.  
• There is an enormous, international effort to contain the outbreak. Agencies, such as CDC, WHO, and others, are 

sending people and resources to West Africa to help with identifying ill people, setting up laboratories and health 
care facilities, doing exit screening at airports, educating the public about Ebola, and advising health care 
personnel on infection control.  

What has happened in Texas? 
• The first Ebola case to be diagnosed in the U.S. was confirmed on Sept. 30, 2014, by the CDC and Texas Health 

Department. The patient died on Oct. 8, 2014. 
• Since the case was confirmed, health officials have been monitoring anyone the patient had been in contact with 

while showing symptoms of Ebola to make sure they do not develop symptoms.  
• A second case of Ebola was confirmed on Oct. 12 in a health care worker in Texas. The health care worker cared 

for the original Ebola patient.    

What is being done to prevent Ebola in Minnesota? 
• Since the start of the outbreak, the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) has been preparing for a case of 

Ebola by: 
o Enhancing surveillance and laboratory testing capacity to detect cases. 
o Providing recommendations for hospitals and other health care facilities on infection control and other 

measures to prevent disease spread. 
o Sending out up-to-date information to the public, international travelers, and public health partners. This 

includes ongoing outreach efforts and public meetings with members of the Twin Cities’ West African 
communities. 

• The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and World Health Organization (WHO) monitor 
international infectious diseases and have staff working in countries with Ebola to help control the spread of 
disease. MDH works closely with these organizations.  

• CDC has worked with airlines to identify individuals who might become ill while traveling. 
  

Minnesota Department of Health                                                                                            Oct. 14, 2014 | Page 2 of 4 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 54 / 83



Ebola Outbreak: Frequently Asked Questions 

 
What would we do if there was a case of Ebola in Minnesota? 

• MDH, local public health, hospitals and clinics have systems in place to identify suspected cases of Ebola.  
o In fact, Minnesota has experience with this type of rare disease. In April 2014, an international traveler 

infected with Lassa fever, another type of viral hemorrhagic fever, arrived in the Twin Cities and was 
quickly identified, isolated, and treated. There was no additional disease spread from this case. 

• A person suspected to have Ebola would be isolated and cared for at a hospital.  
• MDH would identify all people who may have had contact with the patient, determine who may be at risk, and 

monitor at risk contacts for 21 days for any signs of symptoms of Ebola.  
• Hospitals in Minnesota and across the U.S. are well equipped to care for a person with Ebola by following normal 

infection control procedures.  

How are hospitals properly equipped to deal with Ebola? 
• Hospital staff routinely follows procedures to prevent infections such as wearing gloves, gowns, masks, and other 

protective gear when caring for patients so that they don’t come in contact with blood or other body fluids. These 
same procedures would be very carefully followed if they were caring for a patient with Ebola in the United States.  

Is it safe to travel overseas? 
• CDC has recommended that people not travel to Liberia, Sierra Leone, and Guinea where Ebola outbreaks are 

occurring unless it’s essential, such as providing humanitarian aid work in response to this Ebola outbreak.  
• CDC currently recommends that travelers to Nigeria take additional steps to protect themselves. 
• CDC has procedures in place to try to prevent ill passengers from getting on a plane in West Africa. CDC also has 

protocols if an ill passenger were to travel to the United States.  
• If you are planning to travel outside the United States: 

o Discuss your travel plans with your health care provider before you go. 
o Check the CDC Traveler’s Health website for updates on travel notices for specific diseases and 

countries: http://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/notices. 
• After you return from a trip outside the United States: 

o Call your doctor or clinic right away if anyone gets a fever, headache, joint and muscle aches within three 
weeks of returning home.  

o Tell your doctor where you traveled, what you did, and if you had contact with anyone who had Ebola.  

Should I avoid contact with a relative/co-worker/classmate/neighbor or anyone else that recently traveled 
to West Africa? 

• No. You do not need to avoid contact with someone who has recently traveled to a country where an Ebola 
outbreak is occurring.  

• Ebola is spread through direct contact with blood or body fluids. It is only spread when a person is showing 
symptoms. Although there are no Ebola cases in Minnesota, it’s always a good idea to avoid contact with another 
person’s blood. People who work in health care settings or other occupations that may come into contact with 
blood or other body fluids should be properly trained.  

• If a person who recently traveled to West Africa has symptoms of Ebola (including fever) they should contact their 
health care provider and tell them about their travel history. Their health care provider will evaluate their risk for 
Ebola as well as other more common infections of West Africa such as malaria and typhoid. 

  

Minnesota Department of Health                                                                                            Oct. 14, 2014 | Page 3 of 4 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 55 / 83

http://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/notices


Ebola Outbreak: Frequently Asked Questions 

 
Should I avoid public transportation? 

• No. There is no reason to avoid public transportation or other public places.  
• The risk of catching Ebola in the general public is extremely low. 
• No one has contracted Ebola disease in Minnesota.  

How long does Ebola last outside the body? 
• Ebola can survive from 1-2 days outside the body depending on things like temperature, humidity, pH, etc.  

If a person survives Ebola infection, are they immune to it? 
• Yes, if a person has antibodies from a past Ebola infection, they would be protected from getting the same strain 

of Ebola virus again.  

Does Ebola virus stay in the body after a patient has recovered? 
• In general, Ebola does not stay in the body after a patient has fully recovered.  
• Ebola has been found in semen and breast milk for longer periods of time. Persons who are recovering need to 

take some additional steps so that others are not exposed to these fluids. 

How do you treat Ebola disease? 
• There is no medication to cure Ebola and no vaccine to prevent it. Vaccines are in development, but none have 

been approved yet. 
• Treatment for Ebola is supportive, meaning providing fluids, maintaining blood pressure, replacing lost blood. 
• Seeking health care as soon as symptoms appear increases the chances of surviving. It also prevents other 

people from getting infected because they will not come into contact with blood and body fluids of infected people.  

Is there concern that the virus will mutate and become airborne? 
• The virus is constantly mutating, but the mutation rate is extremely slow. It’s very unlikely, based on the type of 

virus, that Ebola would become airborne. 

What can we expect in the near future? 
• It will take time for the Ebola outbreaks to be controlled in West Africa. 
• Health care providers continue to follow standard practices so they do not come in contact with blood or body 

fluids of sick patients. They are also asking sick patients about recent travel to make sure they can rule out Ebola. 
• MDH will continue to monitor the outbreaks, work with partners such as CDC, and provide updates to the public 

and health care providers as needed.   

Where can I get more information? 
• Information about Ebola disease 

o MDH website: www.health.state.mn.us/divs/idepc/diseases/vhf/ 
o CDC website: www.cdc.gov/vhf/ebola.  

•  Travel notices and recommendations 
o CDC website: http://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/  
o WHO website: www.who.int/csr/disease/ebola/en/ 

 

Minnesota Department of Health                                                                                            Oct. 14, 2014 | Page 4 of 4 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 56 / 83

http://www.health.state.mn.us/divs/idepc/diseases/vhf/
http://www.cdc.gov/vhf/ebola
http://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/
http://www.who.int/csr/disease/ebola/en/


Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Board Meeting

Item 8

11:00 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator

RE:  Award Bid SAP 40-599-023 Tyrone Twp Bridge

RE: Tim Biehn Farm Lease Renewal

RE:  Waterville City Garage Lease Agreement

RE:  Waterville EDA Sublease Agreement

RE:  Engineering Service Agreement 367th Ave and 570th Ave

RE: MCIT Delegate and Alternate

RE:  Municipal Maintenance Agreements

RE:  Set Public Hearing for 2015-2019 CIO

RE:  Set Public Hearing for Proposed Fee Increases

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 57 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 58 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 59 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 60 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 61 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 62 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 63 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 64 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 65 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 66 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 67 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 68 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 69 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 70 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 71 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 72 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 73 / 83



Le Sueur County – 367
th
 Ave Improvements  

Erickson Engineering Co., LLC, Engineering Services Agreement 14080 

 
 

 
− 1 − 

 

 CONTENTS 

A PROJECT DESCRIPTION ............................................................................................................. 1 

B SERVICES................................................................................................................................... 2 

1.0 SURVEY ...............................................................................................................................2 

2.0 HYDRAULICS ........................................................................................................................2 

3.0 PERMITS AND UTILITY COORDINATION .................................................................................2 

4.0 SOILS ...................................................................................................................................2 

5.0 CULVERT DESIGN / PLANS .....................................................................................................3 

6.0 ROADWAY DESIGN / PLANS ...................................................................................................3 

C COMPENSATION ........................................................................................................................ 3 

D TIMELINE................................................................................................................................... 4 

E TIME AND MATERIALS RATES ................................................................................................... 5 

F GENERAL CONDITIONS.............................................................................................................. 5 

G AUTHORIZATION ...................................................................................................................... 7 
 

A PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Le Sueur County, in cooperation with Unimin Mine, is proposing improvements to a portion of 
367

th
 Avenue in Kasota Township (Le Sueur County) and 570

th
 Avenue in Lime Township (Blue 

Earth County).   

The proposed improvements consist of raising the road profile to a minimum of the 100-year flood 
elevation (preferably one foot above the 100-year flood).  The length of roadway that will be 
reconstructed is estimated at approximately 1300 ft in Kasota Township and 400 ft in Lime 
Township.  In addition, existing Culvert 40J14 will be replaced as part of the roadway 
improvements. 

 ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT between 

LE SUEUR COUNTY 
and 

ERICKSON ENGINEERING CO., LLC 

for reconstruction of a portion of 

367
th
 Ave (Kasota Twp) and 570

th
 Ave (Lime Twp) 

and replacement of Culvert 40J14 

Sec 18, Twp 109 N, Rge 26 W 

Erickson Engineering Agreement 14080, October 13, 2014 

  

Erickson Engineering Co., LLC 
9330 James Ave S 
Bloomington, MN  55431 

ph 952-929-6791, 800-545-8020 
fx 952-929-2909 

info@erickson-eng.com 
www.erickson-eng.com 

Tom Wilson, P.E., Vice President 
952-929-6791 ext. 223 
twilson@erickson-eng.com 

 

ERICKSON 

ENGINEERING 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 74 / 83



Le Sueur County – 367
th
 Ave Improvements  

Erickson Engineering Co., LLC, Engineering Services Agreement 14080 

 
 

 
− 2 − 

B SERVICES 

In this document, “Client” refers to Le Sueur County and “Consultant” refers to Erickson 
Engineering Co., LLC.   

The Consultant agrees to provide the following services to the Client in connection with the 
aforementioned project, according to the terms of this agreement. 

1.0 SURVEY 

1.1 The Consultant shall perform the required field survey work for the existing roadway and 
structure, and will assume responsibility for obtaining the information necessary to 
complete the bridge survey sheets. 

1.2 All existing utilities shall be located to a quality level B as defined and in accordance with 
MN Statutes Section 216D.01, subdivision 12. 

1.3 Survey work includes the following: 

I Proposed centerline alignment and elevations 

II Roadway cross sections at least every 100 ft 

III Collect information and measure existing topography, underground and 
overhead utilities and any other features affecting the project, including property 
fences, buildings, driveways, trees, etc. 

IV The Consultant shall tie the survey into U.S.G.S. sea level datum and to 
monumentation sufficient to develop legal descriptions to obtain highway 
easements. 

2.0 HYDRAULICS 

2.1 The Consultant shall prepare a hydraulic flood analysis for Culvert 40J14.  The analysis 
will contain data required by State and Federal agencies, including a risk assessment 
(not a risk analysis) and a scour analysis.  The Consultant will use HEC-RAS, WSPRO, 
or HY-8 software.  The scope of the hydraulic analysis does not include preparation of a 
Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR).  It is assumed a CLOMR will not be 
required for this project. 

3.0 PERMITS AND UTILITY COORDINATION 

3.1 The Consultant shall apply for a MN DNR permit.  The Client shall pay the permit fees. 

3.2 The Consultant shall apply for a U.S. Army Corps of Engineers permit. 

3.3 The Consultant shall perform utility investigation and coordination necessary for 
preliminary and final design. 

4.0 SOILS 

4.1 The Consultant shall retain a competent soils firm to obtain test borings and determine 
the foundation conditions of the roadway and the existing structure.  The soils firm will 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 75 / 83



Le Sueur County – 367
th
 Ave Improvements  

Erickson Engineering Co., LLC, Engineering Services Agreement 14080 

 
 

 
− 3 − 

prepare a report which will include recommendations for the foundation design of the 
roadway and culvert.  The cost of the geotechnical investigation is included in the fee 
table in section C. 

5.0 CULVERT DESIGN / PLANS 

5.1 The Consultant shall prepare a complete engineering design for the proposed structure. 
The Consultant shall design the structure to conform to current AASHTO Design 
Specifications, MnDOT standards, and FHWA standards. 

5.2 The Consultant shall prepare one final detail culvert plan in digital format and plotted on 
reproducible material in ink.  The Consultant shall prepare the plan according to MnDOT 
Bridge Design Specifications and MnDOT Standard Specifications for Construction. 

5.3 The Consultant shall prepare the Division SB special provisions, construction cost 
estimate, and load rating for the proposed structure. 

5.4 The Consultant shall submit the plans and supporting documentation to the Client for 
review and approval. 

6.0 ROADWAY DESIGN / PLANS 

6.1 The Consultant shall prepare preliminary and final roadway plans in digital format and 
plotted on reproducible material in ink.  These plans will show the geometric design of 
the roadway, including plan and profile, specific design features in terms of horizontal 
and vertical alignment, typical section, width, erosion control, easements, traffic control, 
right-of-way, plotting of finished cross-sections, quantities, and other geometric design 
factors.  We anticipate approximately 1700 ft of roadway reconstruction will be required 
for this project. 

6.2 If required, the Consultant shall prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP). 

6.3 The Consultant shall prepare a construction cost estimate and special provisions for the 
roadway construction.   

6.4 The Consultant shall submit the plans and supporting documentation to the Client for 
review and approval. 

C COMPENSATION 

Compensation in full for the work described in section B Services will be on a Cost Plus (Time and 
Materials) basis, which includes the Consultant’s profit.  Section E shows the Consultant’s Time 
and Materials rates, and these rates are a part of this agreement. 

Fees and payment for services listed in this agreement will be as follows: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 76 / 83



Le Sueur County – 367
th
 Ave Improvements  

Erickson Engineering Co., LLC, Engineering Services Agreement 14080 

 
 

 
− 4 − 

Services

1.0 Survey $ 4,500.00

2.0 Hydraulics $ 2,500.00

3.0 Permits & Utility Coordination $ 1,000.00

4.0 Soils Report $ 3,000.00

5.0 Culvert Design / Plans $ 7,000.00

6.0 Roadway Design / Plans $ 12,500.00

$ 30,500.00

Estimated Fee

TOTAL FEE
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

The Consultant may request progress payments for “Cost Plus” services while the work is in 
progress, based on time and materials provided within a specific timeframe.  The progress 
payments are due upon receipt of invoice. 

Cancellation:  If the Client cancels this agreement, the Consultant may request payment for all 
work performed up to the cancellation date.  The Client shall pay for fully completed work as 
outlined above.  The Consultant will invoice partially completed work on a Time and Materials 
basis, according to section E Time and Materials Rates. The total amount invoiced for the 
partially completed work will not exceed the amount which would have been due had the work 
been fully completed.   

Additional Services:  If the Client requests that the Consultant provide services not listed in this 
agreement, or if any additional services are required due to revisions in MnDOT, FHWA, 
AASHTO, or Client standards or specifications, then the Consultant may request 
reimbursement for such services.  The Client shall pay the Consultant on a Time and Materials 
basis, according to section E Time and Materials Rates, unless otherwise agreed to in writing 
by both the Consultant and the Client.   

D TIMELINE 

Task  Completion Date 

1.0 Survey ................................................................................... November 2014 

2.0 Hydraulics..............................................................................December 2014 

3.0 Permits / Utility Coordination ........................................................March 2015 

4.0 Soils Report ............................................................................. February 2015 

5.0 Culvert Design / Plans .....................................................................April 2015 

6.0 Roadway Design / Plans .................................................................April 2015 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 77 / 83



Le Sueur County – 367
th
 Ave Improvements  

Erickson Engineering Co., LLC, Engineering Services Agreement 14080 

 
 

 
− 5 − 

E TIME AND MATERIALS RATES 

 TITLE  RATE/HR 

 Vice President  $ 170.00 

 Engineering Manager  $ 151.00 

 Project Manager  $ 105.00 - $  120.00 

 Project Engineer  $ 85.00 - $  95.00 

 Design Engineer  $ 82.00 

 Drafting Manager  $ 105.00 

 Engineering Technician II  $ 85.00 

 Engineering Technician I  $ 75.00 

 Certified Inspector II  $ 85.00 

 Certified Inspector I  $ 80.00 

 Mileage Rate  $ 0.56/mile 

  

 Rates may be adjusted annually to reflect cost of living increases. 

F GENERAL CONDITIONS 

I Scope of Professional Engineering Services 

The Consultant agrees to provide the services described in section B Services when the Client 
requests and authorizes the Consultant to provide the services.  The Client shall pay the 
Consultant for these services on a Time and Materials basis, at the rates stated in section E 
Time and Materials Rates, unless otherwise stated in this agreement.   

II Responsibilities of the Consultant 

The Consultant shall maintain Professional Liability Insurance for $2,000,000 (two million 
dollars) during the life of this contract. If the Client requests additional insurance, the Consultant 
will purchase such insurance if available.  The Client will pay the cost of the additional 
insurance.  

The Consultant is not responsible for the failure of others to perform in accordance with other 
contracts.  The Consultant's services do not relieve others of their responsibilities. 

III Responsibilities of the Client 

The Client shall make available to the Consultant all known information applying to the site and 
services provided by the Consultant.  The Client shall immediately inform the Consultant of new 
information which may be in conflict with previous information regarding the site or Consultant 
services.  The Consultant has a right to depend on documents and information supplied by the 
Client. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 78 / 83



Le Sueur County – 367
th
 Ave Improvements  

Erickson Engineering Co., LLC, Engineering Services Agreement 14080 

 
 

 
− 6 − 

IV Other Damages 

The Consultant and the Client will not be liable to each other for any incidental, consequential, 
or special damage relating to the Consultant’s services.  This includes business interruption, 
good will, or loss of anticipated profits. 

V Termination 

Either party may terminate this agreement by giving fourteen days written notice to the other 
party. Upon termination, the Client will pay the Consultant for costs incurred to the date of 
termination, including termination costs and other obligations and commitments incurred in 
providing services.  All obligations and liabilities between the parties will terminate upon 
payment. These costs are payable under the contract when invoiced. 

VI Document Ownership 

The Client acknowledges the Consultant’s construction documents as instruments of 
professional service.  Nevertheless, the plans and specifications prepared under this 
Agreement will become the property of the Client upon completion of the work and payment in 
full of all monies due to the Consultant.  The Client shall not reuse or make any modification to 
the plans and specifications without the prior written authorization of the Consultant.  To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, the Client agrees to indemnify and hold the Consultant harmless 
from any claim, liability or cost (including reasonable attorney’s fees and defense costs) arising 
or allegedly arising out of unauthorized reuse or modification of the construction documents by 
the Client, or by any person or entity that obtains the plans and specifications from or through 
the Client, without written authorization of the Consultant. 

VII Party Relationship 

The Consultant shall act solely as an independent contractor. The Client and the Consultant 
may not enter into any agreement or assume any obligation for the other.   

VIII Force Majeure 

The Consultant shall not be liable for failure to perform due to circumstances beyond the 
Consultant's control.  These may include, but are not limited to, wars, floods, strikes, riots, fire, 
acts of nature, or inability to obtain equipment or material. In the event of such circumstances, 
the Client will agree to extend the performance time sufficiently to overcome the effects of such 
events. 

IX Successors and Assigns 

The Consultant and Client each binds itself, its successors, and assigns to the other party of 
this agreement and to the successors and assigns of the other party with respect to all 
provisions of this agreement.   

X Entire Agreement 

This agreement represents the entire understanding between the Client and the Consultant.  No 
change of the terms or conditions of this agreement will be binding on either party unless these 
changes are in writing and signed by an authorized representative of both parties.   

XI Applicable Law 

The laws of the State of Minnesota will govern this agreement. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 79 / 83



Le Sueur County – 367
th
 Ave Improvements  

Erickson Engineering Co., LLC, Engineering Services Agreement 14080 

 
 

 
− 7 − 

XII AA/EEO 

The Consultant is an Affirmative Action and Equal Employment Opportunity Employer. 

XIII Dispute Resolution 

In the event of a dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the services the 
Consultant renders or will render hereunder, the Client and Consultant agree to attempt to 
resolve such disputes in the following manner: 

First, the parties agree to attempt to resolve such disputes through direct negotiations between 
the appropriate representatives of each party. 

Second, if such negotiations are not fully successful, the parties agree to attempt to resolve any 
remaining dispute by formal non-binding mediation, conducted according to rules and 
procedures agreed upon by the parties, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. 

Third, if the dispute or any issues remain unresolved after the above steps, the parties agree to 
allow the mediator to help select an alternative resolution method. 

G AUTHORIZATION 

The Client and the Consultant agree as set forth above. 

For the Client:  For the Consultant: 

Le Sueur County Highway Department  Erickson Engineering Company, LLC 
88 South Park Avenue  9330 James Ave S 
Le Center, MN  56057  Bloomington, MN  55431 

                                                                                                        
Signature  Thomas J. Wilson, P.E. 
 
                                                   Vice President   
Title  Title 
 
                                                     October 13, 2014   
Date  Date 
 
 
                                                    
Signature   
 
                                                   
Title   
 
                                                
Date 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 80 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 81 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 82 / 83



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/21/2014 Page 83 / 83


